
 

Licensing Committee 

Agenda 

Thursday, 26 October 2023 at 6.30 p.m. 
Council Chamber - Town Hall, Whitechapel 

Members: 

Chair: Councillor Ana Miah 

  
Councillor Faroque Ahmed, Councillor Leelu Ahmed, Councillor Suluk Ahmed, 
Councillor Gulam Kibria Choudhury, Councillor Abu Chowdhury, Councillor Marc 
Francis, Councillor Peter Golds, Councillor Iqbal Hossain, Councillor Kabir Hussain, 
Councillor Shahaveer Shubo Hussain, Councillor Ahmodul Kabir, Councillor Amy Lee 
and Councillor Rebaka Sultana 

[The quorum for this body is 3 voting Members] 

Contact for further enquiries:  

Farzana Chowdhury, Democratic Services Officer, 

farzana.chowdhury@towerhamlets.gov.uk 

020 7364 3037  

Town Hall, 160 Whitechapel Road, London, E1 1BJ  

http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee 

 



 

 

 
Public Information  
 
Viewing or Participating in Committee Meetings 
 
The meeting will be broadcast live on the Council’s website. A link to the website is 
detailed below. The press and public are encouraged to watch this meeting on line.  
 
Please note: Whilst the meeting is open to the public, the public seating in the meeting 
room for observers may be limited due to health and safety measures. You are advised 
to contact the Democratic Services Officer to reserve a place. 

 
Meeting Webcast 
The meeting is being webcast for viewing through the Council’s webcast system. 
http://towerhamlets.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

Electronic agendas reports and minutes. 

Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be found on our 
website from day of publication.   

To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for the relevant 
committee and meeting date.  

Agendas are available on the Modern.Gov, Windows, iPad and Android apps 

Scan this QR code to view the electronic agenda  

 

http://towerhamlets.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee


 

 

 

A Guide to Licensing Committee 
 
 

The Licensing Committee will determine Licensing policy/procedure (excluding the 
Council’s Statement of Policy) as well as Licensing fees and charges. 

The Committee will also establish a Licensing Sub-Committee to 
consider Licensing matters under the Licensing 2003 Act where representations have 
been made. 

  

Public Engagement 
Meetings of the committee are open to the public to attend, and a timetable for meeting 
dates and deadlines can be found on the council’s website. 
 

http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/mgAgendaManagementTimetable.aspx?RP=327


 

 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
 

Licensing Committee  

 
Thursday, 26 October 2023 

 
6.30 p.m. 

 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (PAGES 5 - 6) 

Members are reminded to consider the categories of interest in the Code of Conduct for 
Members to determine whether they have an interest in any agenda item and any 
action they should take. For further details, please see the attached note from the 
Monitoring Officer.  
 
Members are reminded to declare the nature of the interest and the agenda item it 
relates to. Please note that ultimately it’s the Members’ responsibility to declare any 
interests form and to update their register of interest form as required by the Code.  
 
If in doubt as to the nature of your interest, you are advised to seek advice prior to the 
meeting by contacting the Monitoring Officer or Democratic Services  
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

2 .1 Hearing to consider refusal to grant a special treatment licence for Lily Thai Spa 
Massage, 1 Whites Row, London E1 7NF (Pages 7 - 58) 
 

2 .2 Hearing to consider refusal to grant a special treatment licence for Thai Garden 
Massage Therapy, 35 Artillery Lane, London E1 7LP (Pages 59 - 120) 
 

Next Meeting of the Licensing Committee 
Thursday, 18 January 2024 at 6.30 p.m. to be held in Council Chamber - Town Hall, 
Whitechapel 



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS AT MEETINGS– NOTE FROM THE 

MONITORING OFFICER 

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Code of Conduct for 

Members at Part C, Section 31 of the Council’s Constitution  

(i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) 

You have a DPI in any item of business on the agenda where it relates to the categories listed in 

Appendix A to this guidance. Please note that a DPI includes: (i) Your own relevant interests; 

(ii)Those of your spouse or civil partner; (iii) A person with whom the Member is living as 

husband/wife/civil partners. Other individuals, e.g. Children, siblings and flatmates do not need to 

be considered.  Failure to disclose or register a DPI (within 28 days) is a criminal offence. 

Members with a DPI, (unless granted a dispensation) must not seek to improperly influence the 

decision, must declare the nature of the interest and leave the meeting room (including the public 

gallery) during the consideration and decision on the item – unless exercising their right to address 

the Committee.  

DPI Dispensations and Sensitive Interests. In certain circumstances, Members may make a 

request to the Monitoring Officer for a dispensation or for an interest to be treated as sensitive. 

(ii) Non - DPI Interests that the Council has decided should be registered – 

(Non - DPIs) 

You will have ‘Non DPI Interest’ in any item on the agenda, where it relates to (i) the offer of gifts 

or hospitality, (with an estimated value of at least £25) (ii) Council Appointments or nominations to 

bodies (iii) Membership of any body exercising a function of a public nature, a charitable purpose 

or aimed at influencing public opinion. 

Members must declare the nature of the interest, but may stay in the meeting room and participate 
in the consideration of the matter and vote on it unless:  
 

 A reasonable person would think that your interest is so significant that it would be likely to 
impair your judgement of the public interest.  If so, you must withdraw and take no part 
in the consideration or discussion of the matter. 

(iii) Declarations of Interests not included in the Register of Members’ Interest. 
 

Occasions may arise where a matter under consideration would, or would be likely to, affect the 
wellbeing of you, your family, or close associate(s) more than it would anyone else living in 
the local area but which is not required to be included in the Register of Members’ Interests. In such 
matters, Members must consider the information set out in paragraph (ii) above regarding Non DPI 
- interests and apply the test, set out in this paragraph. 
 

Guidance on Predetermination and Bias  
 

Member’s attention is drawn to the guidance on predetermination and bias, particularly the need to 
consider the merits of the case with an open mind, as set out in the Planning and Licensing Codes 
of Conduct, (Part C, Section 34 and 35 of the Constitution). For further advice on the possibility of 
bias or predetermination, you are advised to seek advice prior to the meeting.  
 

Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992 - Declarations which restrict 
Members in Council Tax arrears, for at least a two months from voting  
 

In such circumstances the member may not vote on any reports and motions with respect to the 
matter.   

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



Further Advice contact: Janet Fasan, Monitoring Officer, Tel: 0207 364 4800. 
 

APPENDIX A: Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 

(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule) 

Subject  Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation 
 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit 
(other than from the relevant authority) made or provided 
within the relevant period in respect of any expenses 
incurred by the Member in carrying out duties as a member, 
or towards the election expenses of the Member. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or 
a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) 
and the relevant authority— 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or 
works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in 
the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 
(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and 
(b) either— 
 
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 
or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, 
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in 
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 
 

 
 

Page 6



Non-Executive Report of the: 

 
 

Licensing Committee 

26th October 2023 

 
Report of: David Tolley,  
Head of Environmental Health and Trading Standards 
 

Classification: 
Unrestricted  

 
London Local Authorities Act 1991  
Hearing to consider refusal to grant a special treatment licence for Lily Thai 
Spa Massage, 1 Whites Row, London E1 7NF 
 

 
 

Originating Officer(s) Mehboob Ahmed, Health & Safety Officer, Licensing 
and Safety Team 

Wards affected Spitalfields and Bangla Town 

 
1. SUMMARY  
 

Proposed licence 
holder: 

Culian Fu 
 

Name and 
Address of 
Premises: 

Lily Thai Spa 
1 Whites Row, 
London E1 7NF 
 

Licence sought: Special Treatment Licence under The London Local 
Authorities Act 1991  
 

Objector: James Doherty, Health & Safety Officer, Licensing 
and Safety Team 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 The Licensing Committee is recommended to consider the application and 

objection and then adjudicate accordingly. 
 
3. DETAILS OF THE REPORT 
 
3.1 This is an application made by Culian Fu for a Special Treatment Licence for 

Lily Thai Spa, 1 Whites Row, London E1 7NF.  The application states the 
treatments to be provided would Massage and Manicure. The application form 
and supporting documents supplied by applicant can be found in Appendix 1. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2.1



3.2 A licence from the Council is required for the use of a premises as an 
establishment for special treatments.  An establishment for special treatment is 
defined in the Act as any premises in the borough used, intended to be used or 
represented as being used for the reception or treatment of persons requiring 
massage, manicure, acupuncture, tattooing, cosmetic piercing, chiropody, light, 
electric or other special treatment of a like kind or vapour, sauna or other baths.  

 
3.3 The application has been consulted on in accordance with the London Local 

Authorities Act 1991 and Tower Hamlets Regulations made under 10(1) of the 
Act. 

 
 This included: 
 

a) A notice at the premises displayed by the applicant during the required 
period.    

b) A Public Newspaper Notice placed in The East London Advertiser on 3rd 
August 2023 by the applicant. This has can be found at Appendix 2. 

c) The application being sent to the Police and London Fire Brigade on 26th 
July 2023. 

 
Objection 
 
3.4 James Doherty Health and Safety Officer, Licensing and Safety Team has 

objected to the granting of this application.  This objection has already been 
made available to the applicant.  The objection is due to the following reasons, 
and can be found in Appendix 3: 
 

 The premises has a history of being improperly conducted because it has 
previously been found offering services of a sexual nature.  This has 
resulted in Council revoking a previous licence on 14th July 2022, and 
refusing an application for a new special treatment licence on 4th October 
2022.   Appendix 4 & 5 

 

 The current applicant is linked to the previous refused application and 
revoked Licence, in respect of being a Director of Redbud London Ltd since 
6th April 2022.  The company’s registered address is 1 Whites Row. 
Appendix 6 

 

 Premises found appearing to provide special treatments without a licence 
(during application consultation period). 

 
4. Legislative provisions 
 
4.1 Licences are granted subject to standard conditions. 

 
4.2 Those Standard Conditions of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets were 

made under the London Local Authorities Act 1991, Section 10(1). It is the duty 
of any licence holder to be aware of and abide by those conditions. A copy of 
the standard conditions is exhibited as Appendix 7. 
 

Page 8



4.3 Under section 8 of the London Local Authorities Act 1991 the Council may 
refuse to grant a licence on the following grounds: 

 
(a) the premises are not structurally suitable for the purpose; 

 
(b) there is a likelihood of nuisance being caused by reason of the conduct, 

management or situation of the premises or the character of the relevant 
locality or the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; 

 
(c) the persons concerned or intended to be concerned in the conduct or 

management of the premises used for special treatment could be 
reasonably regarded as not being fit and proper persons to hold such a 
license; 

 
(d) the persons giving the special treatment are not suitably qualified; 

 
(e) the premises have been or are being improperly conducted; 

 
(f) the premises are not provided with satisfactory means of lighting, 

sanitation and ventilation; 
 

(g) the means of heating the premises are not safe; 
 

(h) proper precautions against fire on the premises are not being taken; 
 

(i) they are not satisfied as to the safety of equipment used in the special 
treatment or as to the manner in which the treatment is to be given; 

 
(j) they are not satisfied as to the safety of the special treatment to be given; 

 
(k) satisfactory means of escape in case of fire and suitable means for fighting 

fire are not provided on the premises; 
 

(l) the applicant has, within the period of five years immediately preceding 
the application to the borough council, been convicted of an offence under 
this Part of this Act. 

 
5. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

 
7.1 There are no equalities implications. 
 
8. OTHER STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 Best Value implications: There are no best value implications. 
 
8.2 Environmental considerations: There are no environmental implications. 
 
8.3 Crime reduction: One of the key licensing objectives of the Council is to ensure 

that it does not licence premises that are liable to be a source of crime and 
disorder. The Council supports and assists with crime and disorder reduction 

Page 9



by controlling those who manage premises open to members of the public and 
imposing conditions on relevant premises licences. Illegal activity has been 
proven to occur at the premises. 

 
8.4 Safeguarding: There are no proven safeguarding impacts; however, premises 

that are managed in this way may employ underage persons or vulnerable 
adults. Therefore, there may be a positive safeguarding impact. 

 
8.5 Risk Management: The Council will be at risk of legal challenge if its processes 

are not transparent and evidentially based. 
 
9. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 
 
9.1 There are no material financial implications arising from the recommendation. 

If the special treatment licence is not granted, the council will forego the license 
income and this will be managed within existing budget provision. 

 
10. COMMENTS OF LEGAL SERVICES  
 
10.1 Section 6 of the London Local Authorities Act 1991 (”the Act) requires that any 

premises to be used for special treatments is licensed (“a special treatment 
licence”) by the Council.  Special treatment covers a wide range of activities 
including body piercing, tattooing, acupuncture, massage, manicure and sauna. 

 
10.2 The application process for a special treatment licence is not prescribed in 

statute and may be (but need not be) the subject of regulations made by the 
Authority under s.7(4) of the Act. The application must be sent to the 
Commissioner of Police and to the London Fire Brigade, both of whom may 
object within 28 days. The Act expressly allows for late representations to be 
considered, at the Authority’s discretion. Any other person may nonetheless 
object to the application. 

 
10.3 As set out in paragraph 4 above, there are a number of statutory reasons upon 

which the Authority may refuse to grant a special treatment licence. These 
reasons include that: 
 

 the persons concerned or intended to be concerned in the management 
of the premises could be reasonably regarded as not being fit and proper 
persons to hold such a licence (s.8(c));  

 the premises have been or are being improperly conducted (s.8(e));  

 the applicant has, within the five years immediately preceding the 
application, been convicted of an offence under Part II of the Act (s.8(l)). 

 
10.4 S.10 gives an Authority power to make regulations providing for standard 

conditions that will be deemed to apply to all licences granted under the Act, 
unless expressly amended or excluded. This power is in addition to the general 
power to impose appropriate conditions to individual licences under s.6.  

 
11.5  Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires the authority, in the exercise of 

its  functions, to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, 

Page 10



harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by the 2010 Act, to 
advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and those who do not, and to foster good relations 
between those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do 
not. The relevant protected characteristics are age; disability gender 
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual 
orientation. Members are required to have regards to the Act when making their 
decision. 

  
11.  APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 Application form and supporting documents  

Appendix 2 Public Newspaper Notice 

Appendix 3 Objection (email and follow up letter) 

Appendix 4 Licensing Committee Hearing Minutes (Revocation) 14th July 
2022 

Appendix 5  Licensing Committee Hearing Minutes (Refusal) 4th October 
2022 

Appendix 6 Companies House Entry 

Appendix 7  Tower Hamlets Standard Conditions  

 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
List any background documents not already in the public domain including officer 
contact information. 

 NONE  
 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



licences/docs/spetreat.005 

Official Use Only 
Fee 
On-Line 
Receipt No. 
C&D Receipt 
No. 
Licence No. 

ESTABLISHMENTS FOR SPECIAL TREATMENTS 

This form should be completed and forwarded to London Borough of Tower Hamlets Environmental 
Health Department, with a cheque or postal order for the fee due made payable to the London Borough 
of Tower Hamlets and crossed. 

Copies of this application will be sent by us to:- 

(a) Commissioner of Police

(b) The London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority,

New licence for the premises named at 2 below. 

1. Full names and private address of
applicants.  If the application is made
by a limited liability company please
give the address of the registered
office, and complete the separate
sheet which seeks details of the
company.

Name:  Cuilan Fu 
Maiden name (if applicable): 
Address (private): 

Date of birth:  
Telephone No:  
Passport No: 
OR NI No: 

2. Trade name and address of premises Name: Lily Thai Spa 

Address:  1 Whites Row, London E1 7NF 

Telephone No: 
Email:  
Opening hours (proposed) 10AM to 10PM 

3. Please supply details of person
responsible for the management of
the establishment if other than the
applicant.

Please enclose 2 passport-sized 
photographs of applicant 

Full Name: 
Address (private): 
Date of birth: 
Telephone No: 
Passport No: 
OR NI No:   

 Enclosed (tick if applicable)   Yes 

Do you have planning permission to use the 
premises for the intended purpose?  

4. (a)Is it proposed to employ staff at
the establishment?

Yes                            (see K on Note) 
Please note that you will require sui genris 

(a) YES

Customer Use 
On-line Receipt No. 

APPENDIX 1

Page 13



licences/docs/spetreat.005 

(b) If so state numbers (b) Five
5. (a) What is the legal title of the

applicant(s) to occupy the premises
(e.g. freehold, leasehold etc.)

(b) If leasehold please give details of
the name and address of the
landlord.

(a) Leasehold

(b) 

6. What parts of the building is it
proposed to use under the licence
(e.g. basement, ground floor) ?

Ground  floor 

7. State precisely all the treatments for
which the licence is intended e.g.
massage, manicure, acupuncture, ear
or cosmetic piercing, tattooing,
chiropody, light electric or other
special treatments.

Massage 
Manicure 

8. State whether it is desired to give
treatment to both sexes or to men or
women only?

Both 

9. State whether exemption from
condition 12 is required (see note J)
for massage purpose only.

Yes 

10. Address of any other massage etc.,
establishment in which applicant or
any director of an applicant company
is or has been interested and the
nature and extent of such interest as

(a) Owner or director of
owning
company; or
(b) employee

Address: 

(a) 

(b) 

11. (a) Does applicant propose to carry on
a visiting massage service either from
these premises or elsewhere?

(b) If elsewhere, please state
address(es) concerned.

(c) Will the masseuses employed on
this service also give treatment on the
licensed premises?

(a) No

(b) 

(c)

Page 14



licences/docs/spetreat.005 

12. Please indicate whether the following
are enclosed with your application.  (A
licence cannot be issued without
them.  These can be provided at a later
stage)

. 

If you are in the process of employing 
therapists please indicate this on the form.  
Once suitable therapists are selected, 
current qualifications for each operative and 
photographs will be required before a 
license can be issued. 

Yes   Electrical inspection certificate for portable 
appliances 

Yes    Two passport-sized photographs of applicant and 
operators 

Yes    Copies of each operator’s current qualifications 
under the conditions of licence 

Yes    A copy of the customer vetting/history card 

Yes   Copies of the current treatment list and price list 

Yes    Third-party insurance 

No      I will pay online  or by phone 
  Cheque/PO for £375.00 / £604.00 (for IPL with or  

without other treatments) made payable to the London 
Borough of Tower Hamlets 

(cheques must not be drawn on third parties). If 
you have paid using the Council’s online payment 
facility, please enter the payment reference 
number in the box on the front of the application 
form. 

no       Copy of Public Notice placed in Newspaper. 
To follow 

Page 15



licences/docs/spetreat.005 

13. DETAILS OF PREVIOUS CONVICTIONS, DISQUALIFICATION ETC.
None to report
In respect of the persons or bodies whose names are given in response to Questions 1 and 3 
give details of their previous convictions (with exception of traffic offences). 

SURNAME FORMER 
NAME 

DATE OF 
CONVICTION 

PLACE OF 
CONVICTION 

NATURE OF 
OFFENCE 

PENALTY 
IMPOSED 

None to 
report 

14. Please list all people who will be giving treatment, the treatment they will be giving and their
qualifications to give that treatment (See Notes H, I and J).

NAME TREATMENT(S) QUALIFICATIONS AND 
COLLEGE ATTENDED 
(enclose certificates) 

HOME 
ADDRESS 

DATE OF 
BIRTH 

PLACE OF 
BIRTH 

Page 16



licences/docs/spetreat.005 

Cuilan Fu Manicure 

Massage 

Massage 

Massage 

Massage 

Massage 

VTCT Level 2 

VTCT Level 3 

VTCT Level 3 

VTCT Level 3 

VTCT Level 3 

VTCT Level 3 

As above 

Where application is made on behalf of a limited liability company the secretary or a director should sign.  
In the case of a partnership, each partner should sign.  In signing on behalf of applicant, please state in 
what capacity you are acting. 

Signature of applicant(s)        .......Cuilan Fu.......................... 
         Signed electronically  

or applicants solicitor or other duly authorised agent. 
 ................................................................. 

Date ........19/07/2023................................Telephone No ........ ........... 

Note:  Payment cheques must not be drawn on a third party 

Address to which licence application or correspondence should be sent: 
Mr D Tolley 
Environmental Health and Trading Standards - Licensing and Safety Team 
Place Directorate 
2nd Floor, Mulberry Place 
5 Clove Crescent 
London 
E14 2BG

Page 17



licences/docs/spetreat.005 

PART 4 

TO BE COMPLETED IN RESPECT OF A LIMITED COMPANY BY A NOMINATED DIRECTOR 

Full name of Limited Company 

Registered Office address of Limited Company 

Telephone number 

Registered Company number 

Names of all Directors and position. 

Are any of the Directors involved with other 
companies that hold a Special Treatments 
Licence?  Please detail. 

Does the Limited Company have licensed 
premises elsewhere? 

If so, please detail. 

This form has been completed by …………………….(name) 
……….......……….(position) 
…………………….(signature) 
…………....………….(date) 

Page 18



licences/docs/spetreat.005 

NOTE 

A. The application should be made by the occupier of the premises.

B. In the case of a limited company, please also complete Part 4 which seeks details of the company.

C. Four sets of plans of the premises must be submitted in accordance with directions contained in
the Council’s rules governing applications for licences.

D. If required, a notice on the form prescribed by the Council must be exhibited  at the premises
for twenty-eight days from the date on which the application is made, and within seven days the
application must be advertised in a local newspaper which circulates in the locality in which the
premises are situated and which is on sale at local newsagents.

E. Licences normally expire 12 months from the date of issue.

F. If premises are not already constructed or adapted so as to permit access to and from the
premises by disabled people, the Council will expect proposals to be  submitted to the
Environmental Health Department indicating how such access will be afforded.

G. Premises are reminded that it is against the law to smoke in all ‘enclosed’ and ‘substantially
enclosed’ public places and workplaces. No smoking signs must be displayed in all smokefree
premises. Staff smoking rooms and indoor smoking areas are no longer allowed.

H. Two identical full-face passport size photographs (taken within the previous 12 months) of all
persons who will be giving treatments at the premises must be supplied with this form.  Each
photograph should be endorsed with the date on which it was taken, bear the name in block
capitals of the person who likeness it bears, and be signed by the applicant.

I. No person may give treatments until the Council’s approval has first been obtained.

J. Where treatment is given or is being received to any part of the body other than the neck and
head, or feet and legs below the knee or hands and arms and is not being so given by a fully
qualified physiotherapist or other person entered on the register of the appropriate professional
organisation who’s qualifications have been approved by the Council, the treatment may be given
only to persons of the same sex as the person giving the treatment, and persons of the opposite
sex shall not be present.

K. If you are unsure as to whether you have the relevant planning permission please contact the
planning department at Tower Hamlets Council: Planning Department, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove
Crescent
London E14 2BG Tel: 020 7364 5009 Fax: 020 7364 5415
Email:planningandbuilding@towerhamlets.gov.uk

THE LICENCE FEE IS NON REFUNDABLE – IN ANY EVENT YOU DECIDE TO WITHDRAW YOUR APPLICATION 
THE LICENCE FEE WILL BE RETAINED TO COVER ADMINISTRATION COSTS. 

Environmental Health and Trading Standards Privacy Notice 

Page 19



licences/docs/spetreat.005 

Data Controller and Purpose 
The information you provide will be used by the London Borough of Tower Hamlets’ 
Environmental  Service, to process your complaint/objection/application.  

Tower Hamlets Council is the Data Controller. 

We process your data in accordance with the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and if 
you have any concerns the Council’s Data Protection Officer can be contacted on 
DPO@towerhamlets.gov.uk  

Condition for Processing Personal Data 
It is necessary for us to process your personal data (name, address, contact details), as a task 
carried out in the public interest, and more personal data such as health, personal and 
household circumstances as necessary for substantial public interest reasons, to assess and 
prioritise in  compliance with a legal obligation  or social protection law,  

A delay in you providing the information requested may result in a delay in providing appropriate 
services.  

How long do we keep your information? 
We will only hold your information for as long as is required by law and to provide you with the 
necessary services. This is likely to be for six years after the case is closed. For further details, you 
can view our Retention Schedule. 

We may also anonymise some personal data you provide to us to ensure that you cannot be 
identified and use this for statistical analysis of data to allow the Council to effectively target and 
plan the provision of services.   

Information sharing 

Your personal information may be shared with internal departments or with external partners 
and agencies involved in delivering services on our behalf.  

The Council has a duty to protect public funds and may use personal information and data-
matching techniques to detect and prevent fraud, and ensure public money is targeted and 
spent in the most appropriate and cost-effective way. Information may be shared with internal 
services and external bodies like the Audit Commission, Department for Work and Pensions, 
other local authorities, HM Revenue and Customs, and the Police. This activity is carried out 
under Article 9(2)(b) of the GDPR, under social protection law.  

We have a duty to improve the health of the population we serve. To help with this, we use data 
and information from a range of sources including hospitals to understand more about the 
nature and causes of disease and ill-health in the area. This data would normally be anonymised 
and never used to make decisions on a specific individual or family.  

We will not transfer your data to non EEA territory and there are no automated decisions 
made with your data. 

Your Rights 
Page 20



licences/docs/spetreat.005 

You can find out more about your rights on our Data Protection Page and how to complain to the 
Information Commissioner.   

Page 21



From: cuilan Fu > 
Sent: 19 July 2023 19:10 
To: Health and Safety 
Subject: Fwd: supporting documents for new application sent a few seconds ago 

-iPhone

�ftF A: cuilan Fu 
BJUI: 2023ff.7 J:l 19 B GMT+l 19:08:26 
!Hc¥f .A.: healthandsafety@towerhamlets.gov.uk 

:±!!: �� : supporting documents for new application sent a few seconds ago 

-iPhone

�ftFA: 
8 JUI: 2023ff.7 J:l 19 B GMT +118:58:06 
!Hc¥f .A.: cuilan Fu 

:±!!: Fw: supporting documents for new application sent a few seconds ago 

I hope everything is in order 

I will phone your helpline to pay the fee. 

Thank you 

Cuilan Fu 

1 Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



4

 
 
 

Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



11Page 32



12

 
 
 

Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



15Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



APPENDIX 2

Page 44



1

 

From: James Doherty  
Sent: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 4:13 PM 
To: k; Special Treatment Licensing <Special.TreatmentLicensing@towerhamlets.gov.uk>; 
Democratic Services <Team_DemocraticServices@Towerhamlets2.onmicrosoft.com> 
Subject: Special Treatment License Application Lily Thai Spa 1 Whites Row London E1 7NF 
 
London Local Authorities Act 1991  
 
Re: Application for a Special Treatment Licence – Lily Thai Spa 1 Whites Row London E1 7NF 
 
 
As this Authority received an application from you for the following treatments –  
1) Massage.  
 
The Licensing and Safety team of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets is making a representation 
objecting to the above application based on the following grounds:  
Section 8 of the London Local Authorities Act 1991 states that one of the grounds for refusal of an 
application include the following –  
 

APPENDIX  3

Page 45



2

. Due to historical issues of conduct and management at the premises I will be objecting to the license  
 
 
 
Kind Regards 
 
James Doherty 
Health and Safety Officer 
Licensing and Safety Team 
Environmental Health and Trading Standards 
Communities Directorate 
4th Floor Tower Hamlets Town Hall 
160 Whitechapel Road 
London E1 1BJ 
 
020 7364 1232 
www.towerhamlets.gov.uk  
 
Follow us on: 
Facebook | Twitter | LinkedIn | Instagram 
 

 
 

Page 46



 

 

          
                                                                                                          Communities Directorate 
                                                                                                           
     
  Date 02/10/2023                                                                             Head of Environmental Health and Trading Standards:  
                                                                                                          David Tolley  
   Lily Thai Spa 
  1 Whites Row 
   London  
   E1 7NF                                                                                           4th Floor Tower Hamlets Town Hall 
                                                                                                          160 Whitechapel Road 
                                                                                                          London 
                                                                                                          E1 1BJ 
                                                                                                          Tel: 020 7364 1232 
                                                                                                          Fax: 020 7364 6901 
                                                                                                          Enquiries to:  
                  
                                                                                                          Email: james.doherty@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
                                                                                                          www.towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

 
 
Dear Ms Fu, 
 

London Local Authorities Act 1991  
Special Treatments License Application Lily Thai Spa 1 Whites Row London E1 7NF 
 
The Licensing and Safety team of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets is making a representation objecting 
to the above application based on the following grounds: 
Under Section 8 (c) and (e) of the above Act 
(c) persons concerned or intended to be concerned in the conduct or management of the premises used for 
special treatment could be reasonably regarded as not being fit and proper persons to hold such a license; 
(e)the premises have been or are being improperly conducted. 
The reason for the objection is that the premises has a history of offering services of a sexual nature.  A previous 
licence for this premises was revoked by the Licensing Committee on the 14th July 2022 and that licence holder, 
Culian Fu, is now and was listed as a company director of Redbud London Ltd at Companies House on the latest 
application – see Appendix 5 Companies House Entry  
                               Appendix 6 Revocation Minutes of 14th July 2022  
                                                                    
Redbud London Ltd again applied for the special treatments license at the same address under the director 
Culian Fu but this was refused on the 4th October 2022 by the Licensing Committee on the grounds that the 
premises has an established history of offering sexual services – See Appendix 7 
 
On the 23rd March 2019, Redbud (London) Ltd was convicted at Thames Magistrates Court of an offence under 
the London Local Authorities Act 1991 Section 14(2).  This was due to the offering of services of a sexual nature 
was in breach of its special treatment licence condition. 
One of the key licensing objectives of the Council is to ensure that it does not licence premises that might be a 
source of crime and disorder. The Council supports and assists with crime and disorder reduction by controlling 
those who manage premises open to members of the public and imposing conditions on relevant premises 
licences. Illegal activity has been proven to occur at the premises and the Licensing and Safety Team of the 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets are of the belief that there is a likelihood of continuation and nuisance being Page 47

mailto:james.doherty@towerhamlets.gov.uk
http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/


 

 

caused by reason of the conduct or management of the premises given all past and proven history of offering 
sexual services. 
 I visited the premises at 1 Whites Row E1 7NF on Mon 11th September at 15.00 and witnessed the shop to be 
open and offering massage. 
The venue has 4 treatment rooms and one of these was closed, a member of staff confirmed that a person was 
receiving a massage. 
 
 

 

Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 
James Doherty 
Health and Safety Officer 
Environmental Health and Trading Standards 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 48



Appendix 4  
Agenda item 
London Local Authorities Act 1991 Hearing to 
consider revoking the special treatment licence for 
Vanilla Thai Massage, 1 Whites Row, London E1 7NF 

o Meeting of Extraordinary, Licensing Committee, Thursday, 14th July, 2022 6.00 
p.m. (Item 2.3) 

Minutes: 
At the request of the Chair, Mr Amran Ali, Health & Safety Officer Environmental Health 
Officer, introduced the report seeking a revocation of the special treatment licence for 
Vanilla Thai Massage, 1 Whites Row, London E1 7NF.  He explained that the Committee 
is recommended to consider revocation of the licence on the basis that the business was 
found to be offering services of a sexual nature. It was noted on 15th & 29th October 
2021 test purchases were carried out by professional surveillance company and found 
that services of a sexual nature was being offered by the therapist and the statement of 
the test purchaser can be found on page 180 of the agenda. 
  
Mr Ali pointed out that when businesses are selected for the test purchasing exercise 
the Council appoints a professional surveillance company and provides a list of the 
premises to the company and that it was the surveillance company that appoint 
individuals to go to the premises at their own time within a time period to conduct the 
visit and there is no information provided to the Council Officers beforehand as to which 
premises they're going to and on what day. It was also noted that a follow up compliance 
visit was carried out on the 27th January 2021 by Officers from the Council, two massage 
therapists were present at the premises one of whom was not listed as a therapist nor 
any qualifications certificates were provided and this was a breach of condition 6 of the 
standard conditions. 
  
Mr Ali informed the Committee that Ms Cheung Lai Kwan’s (Premise Licence Holder) 
Legal Representative had been in contact with him and had informed him that his client 
had been in Hong Kong since December 2009 and a copy of the e-mail can be seen on 
page 7 of the supplemental agenda pack. In the e-mail the solicitor representing the 
licensee stated that she was in December since 2019 and currently still in Hong Kong, 
he also stated that following the findings of the test purchases she had decided to sell 
the business and the business was sold on the 11th of April 2022. The Legal 
Representative since then had sent another email today to confirm that the licensee now 
wishes for her licence to be cancelled. Mr Ali explained that there was insufficient time to 
process that request hence why this report has been brought to the Committee with a 
recommendation to revoke the licence. 
  
Mr Ali concluded that such sexual services do resemble services of prostitution and can 
often be linked with other criminal activities such as human trafficking, exploitation of 
vulnerable females, and money laundering, as well as giving rise to an increased risk of 
spreading infectious diseases. These activities risked tarnishing the reputation of Tower 
Hamlets. 

Page 49

http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=324&MID=13579#AI133938
http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=324&MID=13579#AI133938


  
There were no questions from Members. 
  
There were no other interested parties present to make a representation. Therefore the 
Chair announced that the Committee would deliberate after the meeting and the 
decision would be sent out in writing. 
  
  
DECISION 
  
  
The Licensing Committee considered an application by the Licensing and Safety Team 
seeking the revocation of the special treatment licence held by Cheung Lai Kwan in 
respect of Vanilla Thai Massage, 1 White’s Row, London, E1 (“the Premises”). The basis 
of the application was that two test purchases carried out in October 2021 had resulted 
in sexual services being offered by therapists. 
  
The Committee was also aware of correspondence between the Licensing and Safety 
Team and the licence holder’s solicitor which stated, among other things, that Ms. Kwan 
had sold the business, that she had been in Hong Kong since December 2019, that she 
was not intending to return to the UK in the foreseeable future, and that she has no 
further interest in the business. The Committee was advised that this did not meet the 
requirements of the London Local Authorities Act 1991 for a formal request to cancel. 
  
The Committee heard from Mr. Ali, who outlined the test purchases and the reasons why 
revocation was sought. The Premises were being improperly conducted, the activity 
alleged was tantamount to prostitution, such offences were often linked to other criminal 
activity, and the perpetuation of these activities tarnished the Borough’s reputation. 
  
The licence holder did not attend. The Committee noted the correspondence submitted 
on her behalf. 
  
The Committee was satisfied as to the evidence of the test purchasers, which was in the 
agenda packs and which amounted to a breach of conditions 7B and 9 of the Council’s 
standard conditions which apply to all special treatment licences. In the absence of any 
representations from the licence holder (and noting in any event that she appears to no 
longer be involved in the business) and given her long absence during which she cannot 
have been exercising proper control, the Committee was satisfied that it was appropriate 
to revoke the licence on the basis of section 8(c) and 8(e) of the London Local 
Authorities Act, namely that the persons concerned in the conduct or management of the 
premises could be reasonably regarded as not being fit and proper to hold such a 
licence, and that the premises have been or are being improperly conducted. 
  
Accordingly, the Committee unanimously; 
  
RESOLVED 
  
That the Revocation of the special treatment licence for Vanilla Thai Massage, 1 White’s 
Row, London, E1 7NF be GRANTED.    
 

Page 50



Appendix 5 

Hearing to consider refusal to grant a special 
treatment licence for Vanilla Thai Massage, 1 Whites 
Row, London E1 7NF 

o Meeting of Licensing Committee, Tuesday, 4th October, 2022 6.30 p.m. (Item 
2.1) 

Minutes: 
At the request of the Chair, Mr Kamal Miah, Environmental Health Officer, introduced the 
report which was seeking a refusal to grant a special treatment licence for Vanilla Thai 
Massage, 1 Whites Row, London E1 7NF. He explained the reason for the objection and 
gave a brief history of the premises. 
  
It was noted that Redbud (London) Ltd previously held a special treatment licence which 
was granted on 23rd March 2016 and renewed annually until 14th March 2019 when its 
renewal application was refused by Licensing Committee for offering services of a sexual 
nature. Then on the 23rd March 2019, Redbud (London) Ltd was convicted at Thames 
Magistrates Court of an offence under the London Local Authorities Act 1991 Section 
14(2).  This was due to the offering of services of a sexual nature in breach of its special 
treatment licence conditions. 

  
It was further noted that on the 16th October and 29th October 2021, test purchases were 
carried out by a professional surveillance company and found services of a sexual nature 
were being offered during the massage treatment on both occasions. Ms. Kwan was the 
licence holder at this time.  Ms Cheung Lai Kwan’s special treatment licence was revoked 
by Licensing Committee on the 14th July 2022.  She was a listed as a director of Redbud 
(London) Ltd at the time of the test purchases. 

  
Mr Miah also highlighted that the two massage therapists listed in the new application 
made by Redbud (London) Ltd are the same therapists listed under the previous licence 
held by Ms Kwan at the test purchases. For these reasons, the Licensing and Safety Team 
had concerns that the premises has been operated improperly. Furthermore, the proposed 
licence holder, Redbud (London) Ltd, cannot reasonably be regarded as fit and proper to 
hold a special treatment licence given the previous recent conviction for breaches of the 
London Local Authorities Act 1991 for similar issues that occurred in October 2021. 
  
Members then heard from Mr Robert Sutherland representing the Applicant Ms Cui Lan 
Fu. He stated that nothing said by Mr Miah was being disputed. He referred to the 
supporting documents submitted which set out the statements setting out the 
circumstances for which the application had been applied for. He explained that the 
applicant had acquired the company name in order to take over the premises and in turn 
change company ownership. He explained that the applicant has had no history with the 
premises, no history with the previous operation of the business or the previous 
operators under Redbud London Ltd. 
  

Page 51

http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=324&MID=13234#AI135808
http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=324&MID=13234#AI135808


Mr Sutherland acknowledged the fact that there may be concerns  in relation to this 
particular Applicant because of the history of the premises and therefore asked the 
Committee to consider granting a licence for a short period of three months to enable Ms 
Fu to make an application to transfer that licence into her own personal name or into 
another company formally separating herself from Redbud Ltd. This would also enable 
officers to consider Ms Fu’s application in view of her experience and good record she 
operates in her other premises. 
  
Mr Sutherland assured the committee that Ms Fu would seek to operate at this particular 
premises with high standards and ensure that allegations to which Mr Miah refers to 
doesn't happen again. Ms Fu intends to put in rigorous checks and balances to ensure 
this doesn’t happen again. As well as this a detailed document has been drafted which 
sets out the requirements that expects from her therapists with regards to their 
experience and also a declaration that makes it very clear that they can't be offering and 
shouldn't be offering any sexual services. The document also gets therapists to confirm 
that they have not been arrested or convicted or charged or investigated in any acts in 
relation to prostitution or offering any services of sexual services. This was in hope that 
any therapist would be discouraged from doing such acts if it’s in the form of a contract 
that they're going to enter into. 
  
Mr Sutherland also highlighted the fact that the premises will display signage around the 
premises making it clear that if a customer is offered sexual services and if it is reported 
then the money for the service initially provided would be refunded. This would be 
addressing the problem directly and making it clear that such activity would not be 
tolerated at the premises. It was also noted that Ms Fu would also look to appointing her 
own mystery shopper which again will provide some checks and balances to ensure the 
quality of services are maintained but also sexual services are not being offered without 
her knowledge. 
  
Mr Sutherland concluded by urging Members to grant the licence for up to three months 
in order for the licence to be transferred into Ms Fu’s name or into another acceptable 
company name and within that space of time she will be able to re-establish the 
operation of the premises. 
  
In response to questions, it was noted; 
  

-       That the applicant was not involved or aware of any wrong doings at the 
premises before taking over the premises. 

-       The applicant was only made aware of the allegations when objections were 
raised by Council Officers and she was contacted by Democratic Services for 
the hearing.  

-       Mr. Miah was asked why it had taken until now before these allegations were 
brought to Ms. Fu’s attention. He explained that the service had a number of 
cases to investigate, not just this one, and those took time. Evidence needed to 
be obtained and lines of enquiry pursued and it took a considerable period of 
time to be able to put cases together for either Committee or for referring to 
Legal Services. He confirmed that the case had been brought to the Committee 
within an appropriate time frame. 

  
At this juncture, Mr Jonathan Melnick, Legal Advisor to the Committee, pointed out that 
Councillor Rebekha Sulthana had left the meeting for a short while during the 
submissions for this application and she was therefore advised that she could not 

Page 52



participate in the decision making for this particular application during deliberations. 
However, she could remain and participate for the rest of the meeting. 
  
Concluding remarks were made by both parties. 
  
  
Decision 
  
The Licensing Committee considered an objection to an application by Redbud (London) 
Ltd. for a new special treatment licence (MST licence) in respect of Vanilla Thai Massage, 
1 White’s Row, London, E1 (“the Premises”). The application had been objected by the 
Licensing Authority on the basis that there was a history of sexual services having been 
offered by therapists at the Premises. 
  
Kamal Miah, on behalf of the Licensing Authority, explained his objection. The company 
had previously held an MST licence from March 2016 until March 2019. In March 2019 
the company and its then-director were convicted of offences under s.14 of the London 
Local Authorities Act 1991 for breaches of licence conditions, which included therapists 
offering sexual services. A renewal application had been refused in March 2019. 
  
An MST licence had subsequently been issued to Cheung Lai Kwan. On 16th and 
29th October 2021, test purchases were carried out at the Premises. On both occasions 
the therapist carrying out the massage had offered the test purchaser sexual services. 
Ms. Kwan was at this time the director of Redbud (London) Ltd. The licence was 
subsequently revoked at a Licensing Committee hearing on 14th July 2022. Given the 
history, he was of the view that the Premises had been or were improperly conducted, that 
the applicant could reasonably be regarded as not fit and proper to hold a licence, and 
that the applicant had been convicted of an offence under the 1991 Act in the five years 
immediately preceding the application. 
  
Robert Sutherland addressed the Committee on behalf of Ms. Fu, the sole director of the 
company. There was no dispute as to the history. The reason the application had been 
made in the company name was that the company held the lease. Ms. Fu had taken over 
the company in April 2022 and she had done so for administrative convenience, since it 
would mean that the lease of the Premises did not need to change hands. She had no 
history with the Premises or the previous operators. 
  
Although the company was the same, its controlling mind was not. He submitted that if the 
Committee had a concern then one option was to grant the licence for a short period of 
time, perhaps three months, to allow the authority to be satisfied as to compliance and 
also to allow for the licence to be transferred to Ms. Fu personally or into another company 
name. The Committee was told that she operated other premises without incident. 
  
The Premises offered to change its name to Bamboo Thai, to dispel any association with 
the former operators. The therapists previously working at the Premises would not be 
employed and she would place signage to make clear that sexual services would not be 
on offer. 
  

Page 53



Despite the apparent change in ownership, the Committee’s concerns were not assuaged. 
There was a history of sexual services at the Premises, as evidenced by test purchases. 
To date, the premises had been licensed to two entities; the company and to Ms. Kwan. 
Sexual services had been offered while under the management of both. Ms. Kwan was 
not a director of the company at the time of the first test purchase, having been appointed 
as director in December 2019. Given that one change in ownership or management had 
apparently not changed matters, the Committee was unable to give any real weight to Ms. 
Fu’s assurances that she would not operate in the same way. 
  
It also appeared to the Committee that Ms. Fu had not carried out sufficient due diligence 
before taking over the company. Had she done so, it might be that she would have been 
aware of the history and would not have taken over the Premises. 
The Committee also considered there to be a risk of previous clients returning to the 
Premises in order to obtain sexual services. 
  
There was no dispute that the company had been convicted of a criminal offence in March 
2019. The Committee considered the suggestions of signage and a shorter period. The 
former gave no comfort since the offer of sexual services was already prohibited by 
standard conditions; the latter was not appropriate because it would not address the 
concerns of the previous history and it would not be a realistically long period in which to 
assess compliance. A longer period was considered but that imposed a burden on the 
Authority to monitor compliance. Ultimately, nothing that the Committee had heard gave 
it sufficient confidence that the Premises would be operated in strict compliance with the 
conditions having regard to the history. 
  
The Committee was therefore satisfied that it was appropriate to refuse the application on 
the basis of section 8(c), 8(e), and 8(l), of the London Local Authorities Act 1991, namely 
that the persons concerned in the conduct or management of the premises could be 
reasonably regarded as not being fit and proper to hold such a licence, that the premises 
have been or are being improperly conducted, and that the applicant has within five years 
immediately preceding the application been convicted of an offence under the London 
Local Authorities Act 1991. 
  
Accordingly, the Committee made a majority decision; 
  
6 Against 
1 For  
  
RESOLVED 
  
That the application for a special treatment licence for Redbud (London) Ltd. in respect of 
Vanilla Thai Massage, 1 White’s Row, London, E1 7NF be REFUSED.     
 

Page 54



Appendix 6 

REDBUD (LONDON) 
LIMITED 
Company number 09636831 
Follow this company File for this company 

Filter officers 
Filter officers Current officers 

Officers:4 officers / 3 resignations 
FU, Cuilan 
Correspondence address 

1 Whites Row, Spitalfields, London, England, E1 7NF 

Role ACTIVE 
Director 

Date of birth 
June 1968 

Appointed on 
6 April 2022 

Nationality 
Chinese 

Country of residence 
England 

Occupation 
Director 

 

Page 55

https://follow.company-information.service.gov.uk/company/09636831/confirm-follow?return_to=https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/company/09636831/officers
https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/company/09636831/authorise?return_to=/company/09636831/officers
https://find-and-update.company-information.service.gov.uk/officers/knKma6OOayrxMMpJq8PwZyyNMMM/appointments
Tom.Lewis



M:\EHTeam\Word\Licences\DOCS\spetreat.021.doc 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

MASSAGE AND SPECIAL TREATMENT LICENCE CONDITIONS 

The COUNCIL of the LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS, under the 
provisions of LONDON LOCAL AUTHORITIES ACT 1991, hereby authorise the 
person(s) or company named in the schedule to carry on, up to and including ……… 
an establishment for the giving of massage or special treatment specified in the 
schedule at the address and in the trade name or style or title so specified subject to 
the following conditions:- 

1. The establishment shall be carried on only for the treatment or business and
in the trade name or style or title specified in this licence and at the address
mentioned herein.

2. All notices and advertisements issued by or on behalf of the establishment
shall bear the trade name or style or title aforesaid and the name of individual
assistants shall not be given in such notices and advertisements.

3. The licensee shall at once notify the Council in writing addressed to the
Environmental Health Commercial Team Manager, 4th Floor Tower Hamlets
Town Hall 160 Whitechapel Road London E1 1BJ, of any change in the name
or private address of the licensee or in the treatment afforded or the nature of
the business carried on at the establishment.

4. Except with the written consent of the Council, the licensee shall not employ
in the conduct of the establishment any person (a) whose licence has been
revoked or to whom a licence has been refused on the ground that such
person is unsuitable to hold a licence to carry on an establishment for
massage or special treatment, or (b) who is unsuitable to be so employed on
the ground that misconduct in connection with the employment of such
person in an establishment for massage or special treatment has been
proved to the satisfaction of the Council; and, except with such consent, the
licensee shall not allow or permit any such person to be directly or indirectly
interested in the business carried on at the establishment.

5. The licensee, if a company within the meaning of the companies Act, 1948, or
any Act amending the same shall forthwith notify the Council in writing of any
change in the constitution of the directorate of such company during the
currency of this licence

6. All treatments shall be given only by persons approved by the Council or,
provided that the written consent of the Council has been obtained, under the
personal supervision of a person approved by the Council.

7. The following treatments shall, unless the consent of the Council in writing
has otherwise been obtained, only be permitted by a qualified physiotherapist
in accordance with the directions of a registered medical practitioner with
specific reference to the client to whom the treatment is to be given:-
Massage for curative purposes, long and short wave diathermy;  ultra-sonic
treatments; treatment of moles, ultra-violet ray treatment and electro-sleep
therapy

8. No instrument, apparatus or equipment shall be used in the establishment
without the prior written consent of the Council.

APPENDIX 7

Page 56



M:\EHTeam\Word\Licences\DOCS\spetreat.021.doc 

9. The licensee shall at all times take reasonable precautions to ensure the 
safety of their clients when on the establishment. 

 
10. The Licensee shall ensure that with exception of those persons receiving 

treatment in accordance with the conditions of this licence all clients present 
in any part of the establishment shall be decently and properly attired and 
 separate changing accommodation for males and females shall be 
provided. 

 
11. (i) The walls and ceilings of any treatment room or waiting room shall be 

maintained in a sound structural and clean condition and the surfaces 
shall be such as to facilitate easy cleansing. 

 
 (ii) There shall be provided in every treatment room suitable floor covering 

which shall be such as to facilitate easy cleansing. 
 
 (iii) There shall be adequate light and ventilation to any treatment or waiting 

room either by natural of artificial means. 
 
 (iv) There shall be provided in every treatment room a suitable wash-hand  

basin or basins provided with an adequate supply of hot and cold water. 
 

(v) There shall be provided, in respect of a wash-hand basin, soap, a 
nailbrush and a supply of disposable towels or a clean towel available at 
all times. 

 
(vi) There shall be provided in every treatment and waiting room suitable 

and sufficient means for heating and a reasonable room temperature 
shall be maintained. 

 
 (vii) Where it is intended that more than one person shall be treated in a 

room, suitable screening shall be provided to maintain privacy. 
 

(viii) There shall be provided in respect of every establishment sanitary 
accommodation to the standard laid down in regulations made under the 
relevant registration such sanitary accommodation to be available to 
and readily accessible for clients. 

  
(ix) There shall be provided proper means for securing the cleanliness of all 

instruments, towels and materials and equipment used in connection 
with the establishment. 

 
Further condition to be included in appropriate cases:- 
 
12. Unless otherwise expressly permitted by the Council when treatment is given 

or is being received to any part of the body other than the neck and head or 
feet and legs below the knee or hands and arms and is not being so given by 
a fully qualified physiotherapist of other person entered on the register of the 
appropriate professional organisation whose qualifications have been 
approved by the Council, the treatment may be given only to persons of the 
same sex as the person giving the treatment and persons of the opposite sex 
shall not be present. 

 

Page 57



M:\EHTeam\Word\Licences\DOCS\spetreat.021.doc 

N.B. 
 
(I) The licence is not transferable either as regards the person to whom, to the 
 premises in respect of which, it is granted. 
 
(II) The licensees shall on application for renewal of their licence submit to the 

Council a certificate signed by a competent electrician certifying the safety of 
all electrical equipment and apparatus used within the terms of the licence. 

 
SCHEDULE 

 
Name, trade name, style                    Full name of                    Treatments 
Or title and address                              licensee                         authorised 
 
   

Page 58



Non-Executive Report of the: 

 
 

Licensing Committee 

26th October 2023 

 
Report of: David Tolley,  
Head of Environmental Health and Trading Standards 
 

Classification: 
Unrestricted  

 
London Local Authorities Act 1991  
Hearing to consider refusal to grant a special treatment licence for Thai Garden 
Massage Therapy, 35 Artillery Lane, London E1 7LP 
 

 
 

Originating Officer(s) James Doherty, Health & Safety Officer, Licensing 
and Safety 

Wards affected Spitalfields and Bangla Town 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 

Proposed licence 
holder: 

Thai Garden Ltd 
 

Name and 
Address of 
Premises: 

Thai Garden Massage Therapy 
35 Artillery Lane, 
London E1 7LP 
 

Licence sought: Special Treatment Licence under The London Local 
Authorities Act 1991  
 

Objector: Mehboob Ahmed, Health & Safety Officer, Licensing 
and Safety Team 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 The Licensing Committee is recommended to consider the request to refuse 

the grant of the special treatment licence and then adjudicate accordingly. 
 
3. DETAILS OF THE REPORT 
 
3.1 This is a report by the Licensing and Safety Team to object to the application 

for the grant of a new special treatment licence for Thai Garden Massage 
Therapy, 35 Artillery Lane, London E1 7LP. The application states the 
treatments to be provided is Massages. The application form and supporting 
documents supplied by applicant can be found in Appendix 1. 

Page 59

Agenda Item 2.2



 
3.2 A licence from the Council is required for the use of a premises as an 

establishment for special treatments.  An establishment for special treatment is 
defined in the Act as any premises in the borough used, intended to be used or 
represented as being used for the reception or treatment of persons requiring 
massage, manicure, acupuncture, tattooing, cosmetic piercing, chiropody, light, 
electric or other special treatment of a like kind or vapour, sauna or other baths. 
 

3.2.1 The application has been consulted on in accordance with the London Local 
Authorities Act 1991 and Tower Hamlets Regulations made under 10(1) of the 
Act. 

 
 This has included:  
 

a) A notice at the premises displayed by the applicant during the required 
period.    

b) A press advert placed in The East London Advertiser on 24th August 2023 
by the applicant. This has can be found at Appendix 2 

c) The application being sent to the Police and London Fire Brigade on 14th  
August 2023. 

 
Objection 
 
3.3   Mehboob Ahmed Health and Safety Officer, Licensing and Safety Team has 

objected to the granting of this application.  This objection has already been 
made available to the applicant.  The objection is due to the following reasons, 
and can be found in Appendix 3: 
 

 The premises has a history of being improperly conducted because it 
has previously been found offering services of a sexual nature.  This has 
resulted in Council revoking a previous licence on 14th July 2022.  This 
printed decision for this hearing are attached to the objection in appendix 
3. 
 

 Premises found appearing to provide special treatments without a 
licence (during application consultation period).  Please see the onsite 
report and PACE Notebook entry attached to the objection in appendix 
3. 

 
4. Legislative provisions 
 
4.1 Licences are granted subject to standard conditions. 

 
4.2 Those Standard Conditions of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets were 

made under the London Local Authorities Act 1991, Section 10(1). It is the duty 
of any licence holder to be aware of and abide by those conditions. A blank 
copy of the standard conditions is exhibited as Appendix 4. 
 

4.3 Under section 8 of the London Local Authorities Act 1991 the Council may 
refuse to grant a licence on the following grounds: 

Page 60



 
(a) the premises are not structurally suitable for the purpose; 

 
(b) there is a likelihood of nuisance being caused by reason of the conduct, 

management or situation of the premises or the character of the relevant 
locality or the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; 

 
(c) the persons concerned or intended to be concerned in the conduct or 

management of the premises used for special treatment could be 
reasonably regarded as not being fit and proper persons to hold such a 
license; 

 
(d) the persons giving the special treatment are not suitably qualified; 

 
(e) the premises have been or are being improperly conducted; 

 
(f) the premises are not provided with satisfactory means of lighting, 

sanitation and ventilation; 
 

(g) the means of heating the premises are not safe; 
 

(h) proper precautions against fire on the premises are not being taken; 
 

(i) they are not satisfied as to the safety of equipment used in the special 
treatment or as to the manner in which the treatment is to be given; 

 
(j) they are not satisfied as to the safety of the special treatment to be given; 

 
(k) satisfactory means of escape in case of fire and suitable means for fighting 

fire are not provided on the premises; 
 

(l) the applicant has, within the period of five years immediately preceding 
the application to the borough council, been convicted of an offence under 
this Part of this Act. 

 
 
5. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

 
7.1 There are no equalities implications. 
 
8. OTHER STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 Best Value implications: There are no best value implications. 
 
8.2 Environmental considerations: There are no environmental implications. 
 
8.3 Crime reduction: One of the key licensing objectives of the Council is to ensure 

that it does not licence premises that are liable to be a source of crime and 
disorder. The Council supports and assists with crime and disorder reduction 
by controlling those who manage premises open to members of the public and 

Page 61



imposing conditions on relevant premises licences. Illegal activity has been 
proven to occur at the premises. 

 
8.4 Safeguarding: There are no proven safeguarding impacts; however, premises 

that are managed in this way may employ underage persons or vulnerable 
adults. Therefore, there may be a positive safeguarding impact. 

 
8.5 Risk Management: The Council will be at risk of legal challenge if its processes 

are not transparent and evidentially based. 
 
9. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 
 
9.1 There are no material financial implications arising from the recommendation. 

If the special treatment licence is not granted, the council will forego the license 
income and this will be managed within existing budget provision. 

 
10. COMMENTS OF LEGAL SERVICES  
 
10.1 Section 6 of the London Local Authorities Act 1991 (”the Act) requires that any 

premises to be used for special treatments is licensed (“a special treatment 
licence”) by the Council.  Special treatment covers a wide range of activities 
including body piercing, tattooing, acupuncture, massage, and sauna. 

 
10.2 The application process for a special treatment licence is not prescribed in 

statute and may be (but need not be) the subject of regulations made by the 
Authority under s.7(4) of the Act. The application must be sent to the 
Commissioner of Police and to the London Fire Brigade, both of whom may 
object within 28 days. The Act expressly allows for late representations to be 
considered, at the Authority’s discretion. Any other person may nonetheless 
object to the application. 

 
10.3 As set out in paragraph 4 above, there are a number of statutory reasons upon 

which the Authority may refuse to grant a special treatment licence. These 
reasons include that: 
 

 the persons concerned or intended to be concerned in the management 
of the premises could be reasonably regarded as not being fit and proper 
persons to hold such a licence (s.8(c));  

 the premises have been or are being improperly conducted (s.8(e));  

 the applicant has, within the five years immediately preceding the 
application, been convicted of an offence under Part II of the Act (s.8(l)). 

 
10.4 S.10 gives an Authority power to make regulations providing for standard 

conditions that will be deemed to apply to all licences granted under the Act, 
unless expressly amended or excluded. This power is in addition to the general 
power to impose appropriate conditions to individual licences under s.6.  

 
10.5  Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires the authority, in the exercise of 

its  functions, to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, 
harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by the 2010 Act, to 

Page 62



advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and those who do not, and to foster good relations 
between those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do 
not. The relevant protected characteristics are age; disability gender 
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual 
orientation. Members are required to have regards to the Act when making their 
decision. 

 
11.  APPENDICES 
 
 

Appendix 1 Application form and supporting documents  

Appendix 2 Newspaper Advert – Public notice 

Appendix 3 Objection letter and supporting evidence (including: Printed 
Licensing Committee Decision – 14th July 2022 and Onsite 
Report/Pace Notebook entries). 

Appendix 4 Copy of standard conditions 

 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
List any background documents not already in the public domain including officer 
contact information. 

 NONE  
 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



P
age 102



Page 103



22 

LOCALL .ST.NGS 

PUBLIC 

August 24, 2023 eastlondonadvertiser.co.uk 

To advertise telephone: 

020 8478 4444 

or email: 

sehub@localiq.co.uk 

Planning Notices I Traffic Notices I Legal Notices I Probate Notices I Other Notices I Church and Religious Notices I Tenders and Contracts I Goods Vehicle Operator Licences 

ALCOHOL & Licensing 

Licen�ngAct200] 
Application for a new Premimlicence 
Notice� her!by given that 640 EWater 
11"'tltdlwaipoitothelBol 

Tower Hanim on 17t!i August for a new 
premiseskfflcelorThe(irarnofaNe-w 
Prenises licenct lor 640 East Cafe Bar, 
located at Unit 2,Water itrtet. London 
El4 IGX11t proposed aipiation, to 
�mitl.thetale�mal olakoool 

�- 07.00 a,,d 2ll0 daly 
l.ty peooo.., wilhes • mak, a 
representalXXlil!llaOOlltodis� 
!Mlgi'itnoiiceilwritingofhi!lhtr 
"1""""""�14thi,p...,.�B"'I' 
""day""'"" 'l'I'"'""' - � 
"" iaroi,g depar,r,nt) ••titg "" 
gm.olsb-maltitg.-rel""'•""• 
writitg to: EIM1lllllfn13J Health � 
Trao�lta,,dri,1-Hameui,,mllal,
160,111mdtap, "'311.looloo El I�• 
�em,jl10iaroi,g@..,-11.p, 
aklltjd,icregitt,.i...appf,atio, 
.. -.�-�-·

thep<&oo�acassedm� 
,i;titg•htlp</l,,ww .... -11.p. 
�''"""'Jl'Tht 
Licensing Authority mmt rective 
"P"l""""'�""dal,W""'""'· 
� nmt rebte to °"' or 
"""olthebx"""'i�THE 
PRE�HOOH Of !IJME ANO llllOROE� 
PUBII WETY. THE PRE�NllON Of 
PUBIINUISAIKl,OR THE FRIITHJllllllf 
CHl��NIIIOl1HAPJI 
It is an offence, under smion ISS of 
the licensingAct2003,to knowingfyor 
redlffify make a false statement in or 
in {Onnection with an app�cation for 
premises lictnct and the maximum fine 
is upto ltvtl5on tlie standard�,. 
�tephen Thomas IAW,Soliciton for lhe 
Applicant. 8, Grmmere, Leyboume, 
Kent HEl9 SQP 

Need to 
congratulate 

someone? 

PLACING 

YOUR 

MESSAGE 

IS EASY! 

Call our classified 
team on 

0208478 

4444 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
APPLICATION FOR NEW PREMISES L ICENCE 

I SAIDAJAN HASSANKHEIL acting as director 
of MILANO EXPRESS PIZZA & PERI PERI LTD 
have applied to LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER 
HAMLETS for a premises licence for: GROUND 
FLOOR & BASEMENT SHOP AT 479 CAMBRIDGE 
HEATH ROAD, LONDON E2 9BU So that the 
following licensable activities may be provided 
on the following days and hours:Provision of late
night refreshment during the hours: For Sunday 
to Thursday from 23:00 until 01 :  00 hours For 
Friday to Saturday to 23:00 until 02:00 Tower 
Hamlets Council's Licensing Register is kept at 
the office of the Licensing Team, Environmental 
Health & Trading Standards, Mulberry Place, 5 
Clove Crescent, London E14 28G. (10am and 4pm, 
Monday to Friday), where details of the application 
may be inspected. Any representations against the 
application must be made in writing and received 
by the Licensing Team at the above address, 
by no later than the on 12 September 2023. 
Individuals, businesses and other bodies may 
make representations in relation to the application. 
Representations must be relevant and can only 
be on the licensing objectives of the prevention of 
crime and disorder, public safety, the prevention of 
public nuisance, and the protection of children from 
harm. Copies of all representations will be sent to 
the applicant. Persons making representations 
will have to appear at the Councils' Licensing 
Sub--Committee. Note: It is an offence, liable on 
conviction to a fine up to £5,000 for an applicant to 
knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in 
connection with the application. 

ALCOHOL & Licensing 

Tower Hamlets Licensing Authority 
Daniel Caleb from London Metropolitan University 
is applying for a premises licence for; London 
Metropolitan University 16 Goulston Street London 
El 7TP Ref: tower�hamlets·1402058 
If granted the application will allow the following 
licensable activities to take place, from 11 :00 -
23:00, Monday to Sunday Sale of Alcohol on the 
premises 
Provision of regulated entertainment, Provision 
of facilities for regulated entertainment. The 
premises are open Monday to Sunday for London 
Metropolitan University Students. 
Any person wishing to make representation in 
relation to the application may do so by writing 
to: Licensing Team Environmental Health & 
Trading Standards, Tower Hamlets Town Hall,160 
Whitechapel Road, London E1 1 BJ. 

GOODS Vehicle Licensing 

Advanced Access Platforms Ltd is applying 
to change an existing Operator's Licence 
as follows. To keep an additional 2 goods 

vehicle at 17 Lanrick Road, Moodey 
Wharf, Poplar, London, E14 OJF. Owners 

or occupiers of land (including buildings) 
near the operating centre/s) who believe 
that their use or enjoyment of that land 
would be affected, should make written 

representations to the Traffic Commissioner 
at Hillcrest House, 386 Harehills Lane, 
Leeds, LS9 6NF, stating their reasons, 

within 21 days of this notice. Representors 
must at the same time send a copy of 

their representations to the applicant at 
the address given at the top of this notice. 

A Guide to Making Representations is 
available from the 

Traffic Commissioner's Office 

Car ready for 
an MOT? 
Visit your local website 

and click on 'Local Listings'. 

t: 020 8478 4444 

e: sehub@localiq.co.uk 

OTHER 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS PLANNING 
(LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS) 
ACT 1900, SECTIONS 10, 67 ANO 73 APPLICATIONS 
FOR L ISTED BUILDING CONSENT AND APPLICATIONS 
FDR DEVELOPMENT WHICH WOULD IN THE OPINION 
OF THE LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY AFFECT 
THE CHARACTER OR APPEARANCE OF AN AREA 
DESI GNATED AS A CONSERVATION AREA OR WOULD 
AFFECT THE SETTING OF A LISTED BUILDING. 
Flat 3 & 4,160 Wapping High Street, London, E1W 3PG 
PA/23/01502 Proposed merging of a x2 bed flat and x1 
bed to create a x3 bed flat 
Bishopsgate Goods Yard, Shoreditch High Street, 
London PA/23/01210 Retention of temporary football 
centre comprising 9 five-a•side and 3 seven·a-side 
floodlit all-weather football pitches and supporting 
ancillary facilities 
122 Bethnal Green Road, London, E2 60G PA/23101275 
Partial demolition and reconstruction to the rear, including 
additional floor and roof extension above to provide 
flexible Class E use at ground and basement floors; 
accommodate 2x one bedroom flats and 1 x two storey 
two bedroom flat; and associated refurbishment works 
Cauthens Public House, 21 White Church Lane, 
London, E1 7QR PA/23/00287 Retrospective application 
for change of use from public house to a large HMO (Sui 
Generis) on 1st, 2nd and 3rd floors. 
Flat 22, Regents Wharf, Wharf Place, London, E2 9BD 
PA/22/02706 Addition of a new single storey extension to 
the existing residential flats building to create a 1 no. 1 b2p 
new flat. 
Pelley Hall, Rear of 52 Chilton Street, London, E2 
PA/23/01503 Proposed replacement of flat roof to rear 
section of the building with x3 roof lights, raise existing 
parapet wall to allow for new flat roof construction and xl 
new lightwell to the ground floor. 
The following are householder applications and in the 
event of an appeal against a refusal of planning 
permission, which is to be dealt with on the basis of 
representations in writing, any representations made 
about these applications will be sent to the secretary 
of state, and there will be no further opportunity to 
comment at appeal stage 
13 Mile End Place, London, E1 4BH PA/23101513 
Proposal for single storey rear and side infill extension at 
ground floor level to replace an existing side infill 
extension. Insertion of a window to the side elevation 
and rooflight to flat roof of closet wing at 1st floor. 
Any person who wishes to make representations relating 
to any of these applications should do so, in writing, 
within a period of 21 days from the date of publication of 
this notice (unless stated above) by using the web 
link https://development.towerhamlets.gov.uk, by e-mail 
to development.control@towerhamlets.gov.uk (please 
include your postal address) or in writing to Development 
Management, Planning and Building Control, Housing 
and Regeneration Directorate, Tower Hamlets Town Hall, 
160 Whitechapel Road, London E1 1 BJ. 
Dated: 24th August 2023 
JENNIFER PETERS, Director, Planning and Building 
Control 

SPECIAL T R EAT MENT LICENCES 
NOTICE IS GIVEN THAT Chanakan Ayriss 
Has applied to the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlet for Massage Licence(s) for the premises 
ThaiGarden Ltd, 35 Artillery Lane, London, E1 
7LP. Anyone wishing to oppose the application 
must give notice in writing to David Tolley, Head 
of Environmental Health and Trading Standards, 
Environmental Health and Trading Standards, 
Place Directorate, 4th Floor Tower Hamlets Town 
Halt 160 Whitechapel Road London E1 1 BJ WITHIN 
THREE WEEKS specifying grounds of opposition. 
Persons objecting to the grant of a licence must be 
prepared to attend in person at a hearing before a 
Committee of the Council 

PROBATE & Trustee 

TIMOTHY CLARKE (Deceased) 
Purauant to too Trustee Act 1925 atr/ 
person sha>ing ac�magainstorrui 
illlerestintheEstate oftheabovenamed, 
ale of Rat 30 36 Thra1• Slreel, Loooon, 
E1 6RN, who dMlll on =. are 
required lo send wtilen particubls 
tooreoftotoountler,ignetlon orbefore 
25/1il2023, after whdl date too Eslate 
v,11 be dolnbulol ha>ing regard on�to 
too ciaims aoo interests of whdl !hey 
ha"'hadnolice. 
JEFFERIES ESSEX LIP, 
3rd Fkior Oer<:0ra Coo� Tylera Avenue, 
Southend-on - S ea Essex, SSt 288 

JEAN AGNES 
WATSON Deceased 

Pursuant to the Trustee Act 1925 
anyone having a claim against or an 
interest in the Estate of the 

�h:ri,t�n���. El
f

◄ it :h:d�;� 
on 26/07/2023, must send written 

�S�Oli(ritat:/!t�hs �:��
w 

J� 
Estate will be distributed having 
regard only to claims and interests 
notified. 
Paul Baker 
do Laurelo Limited, 

�: �eiJvr�ioi1rRo��?l
8P. 

STATUTORY 

Speak to one of 
our local business 
advisors. 

t: 020 8478 4444 

e: sehub@localiq.co.uk 

Notice Of Application For Planning Permission 
Under Article 15 Of The Town and Country Planning 

T ti:
v

���n
m

:�� ����1�
m

����r�g
c

���
r

����(i
1

:���1:�) 
2015 

Date of notice: 24 Aug 2023 
In accordance with the above act and related legislation, notice is hereby 
given that the application forms, plans and other documents submitted in 
relation to the proposal noted below may be viewed and/or downloaded 
from the London Legacy Development Corporation's Planning Register on 
the following website: http://planningregister.londonlegacy.co.uk. 
Anyone who wishes to make comments about the application should 
email planningenquiries@londonlegacy.co.uk quoting the relevant 
Application Reference Number. Comments should be submitted within 
21 days of the date of this notice and should be received by 13 Sep 23. 
For details of how the Planning Policy and Decisions Team (PPDT) applies 
data protection principles to processing data supplied to us, please see 
the Privacy Notice available on our website -
www.queenelizabetholympicpark.co.uk/planning•authority/planning• 
policy•and--decisions-team•privacy•notice. 
The proposed development is situated within 10 metres of relevant 
railway land. Application Reference No: 23/00234/FUL Application Site: 
Former Hope Chemical Works, 34-38 Wallis Road, Hackney Wick, London 
Description of Proposal: Application for the demolition of the existing 
boundary wall and construction of a mixed-use redevelopment comprising of 
212-bedroom purpose·built shared living accommodation (sui generis) and 
flexible workspace (Class E) including landscaping, plant and associated 
works. Applicant's name: Wallis UK Propco Ltd, c/o agent Dated: 18 July 
2023 Authorised by: Anthony Hollingsworth On Behalf of: London Legacy 
Development Corporation, Planning Policy and Decisions Team. 
Application Reference No: 23/00248/FUL Application Site: Vittoria Wharf, 
Stour Road/Beachy Road, London, E3 2NT Description of Proposal: Full 
planning permission for the redevelopment of the site including demolition of 
all existing buildings (except the Gatehouse and associated boundary wall) 
and for a mixed-use development comprising a part eight, part six storey 
development comprising 72 residential units (Use Class C3) and business 
floorspace (Class E(g)(iii)) at the ground and part first floor, and associated 
highway and landscaping works. Applicant's name: Vittoria Wharf Ltd 
c/o Agent Dated: 27·JuI·2023; Authorised by: Anthony Hollingsworth 
On Behalf of: London Legacy Development Corporation, Planning Policy 
and Decisions Team. 
Application Reference No: 23/00270/FUL Application Site: Algha Works, 
Smeed Road, LONDON, E3 2NR Description of Proposal: Full Planning 
application for the change of use from General Industrial (Class 82) to 
Incubator Workspace and Tethered Living Accommodation (Sui Generis), and 
single storey roof extension. Applicant's name: Palmlane Estates Ltd Dated: 
24•Aug•2023; Authorised by: Anthony Hollingsworth On Behalf of: London 
Legacy Development Corporation, Planning Policy and Decisions Team 

APPENDIX 2

Page 104



M:\EHTeam\Word\Licences\DOCS\Committee Reports\Thai Garden Massage Therapy\Objection letter to applicant - 22.9.23.doc 

Chanakan Ayriss 
Thai Garden 
35 Artillery Lane 
London 
E1 7LP 

Date: 26th September 2023 

Place Directorate 
Communities 

Head of Environmental Health and Trading 
Standards: David Tolley  

4th Floor Tower Hamlets Town Hall 
160 Whitechapel Road 
London E1 1BJ
Tel: 020 7364 6619 
Fax: 020 7364 6901 
Enquiries to:  

Email: mehboob.ahmed@towerhamlets.gov.uk 

www.towerhamlets.gov.uk 

Dear Ms Ayriss 

London Local Authorities Act 1991 
Premises: Thai Garden, 35 Artillery Lane, London E1 7LP 

Further to my objection to the granting of this application for a special treatment licence 
dated 5th September 2023, please find evidence in support of my objection. 

As detailed in my objection mentioned above, this premises has a history of being 
improperly conducted because it has previously been found offering services of a sexual 
nature.  This can be evidenced most recently where a licence for similar treatments was 
revoked by the Council at a hearing of the Licensing Committee on 14th July 2022. 

As per section 8(e) of the above Act the Council may refused to grant an application for a 
licence on the ground that the premises have or are being improperly conducted.    The 
attached printed minutes (Appendix 1 – Printed Minutes) of the Licensing Committee 
Hearing on 22nd July 2022 shows that the previous licence was revoked and that this was 
bought to the attention of the Licensing Committee due to test purchases carried out on 25th 
and 29th October 2021 where services of a sexual nature were offered. 

Further to this as per section 8(c) of the above Act the Council may refuse to grant an 
application for a licence on the grounds that the person concerned or intended to be 
concerned in the conduct or management of the premises used for special treatment could 
be reasonably regarded as not being fit and proper persons to hold such a licence.  During 
a visit to the premises on 1st September 2023 the premises appeared to be already offering 
special treatments without a licence.  This was despite previous emails on 24th July and 15th 
August 2023 (Appendix 2 - Emails to Applicant) clearly stating not to provide special 
treatments until their application for a licence had been granted.  During this visit on 1st 
September Pana Sooha an employee of the premises confirmed that massages were being 
provided, see appendix 3 – Onsite Report.  This was further confirmed by two gentlemen 

APPENDIX 3

Page 105

mailto:mehboob.ahmed@towerhamlets.gov.uk
http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/


  

M:\EHTeam\Word\Licences\DOCS\Committee Reports\Thai Garden Massage Therapy\Objection letter to applicant - 22.9.23.doc 
 

seen leaving the premises 10 minutes after my visit on 1st September 2023 who appeared 
to be customers (Appendix 4 – Notebook Printout). 
 
It is therefore my view based on this evidence above that on the balance of probabilities, 
the premises is likely to again be used for immoral practices, namely services of a sexual 
nature.  Moreover, given that the applicant appears to already be offering special 
treatments shows that the Council cannot have any faith that they will adhere to the 
Council’s Standard Conditions for Special Treatment Licence, and, thus likely the premises 
will be improperly conducted.   
 
If you require any further details, do not hesitate to contact me on the telephone number 
given above. 
 
Yours sincerely, 

 
Mehboob Ahmed 
Health and Safety Officer 
Environmental Health and Trading Standards 

Page 106



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 14/07/2022 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

RECORD OF THE DECISIONS OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 

HELD AT 6.00 P.M. ON THURSDAY, 14 JULY 2022 

THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 
CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

Members Present: 

Councillor Kamrul Hussain (Chair) 

Councillor Faroque Ahmed (Member) 
Councillor Leelu Ahmed (Member) 
Councillor Suluk Ahmed (Member) 
Councillor Sabina Akhtar (Member) 
Councillor Gulam Kibria Choudhury (Member) 
Councillor Peter Golds (Member) 
Councillor Shubo Hussain (Member) 
Councillor Amin Rahman (Member) 
Councillor Rebaka Sultana (Member) 
Councillor Abdul Wahid (Member) 

Officers Present: 

Tom Lewis  – Team Leader, Licensing & Safety Team
Jonathan Melnick 
Kamal Miah 
Amran Ali 
Simmi Yesmin 

– Principal Lawyer – Enforcement
– Environmental Health Officer
– Heath & Safety Officer
– Democratic Services Officer

Apologies 

Councillor Saied Ahmed 
Councillor Asma Begum 
Councillor Kabir Hussain 
Councillor Ahmodul Kabir 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

2. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION

2.1 London Local Authorities Act 1991 Hearing to revoke the special
treatment licence for Genesis Thai Beauty Spa, Unit 2 Nagpal House, 1
Gunthorpe Street London E1 7QX

APPENDIX 1

Page 107



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 14/07/2022 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

 
The Licensing Committee considered an application by the Licensing and 
Safety Team seeking the revocation of the special treatment licence held by 
Genesis New World Aldgate Ltd. in respect of Genesis Thai Beauty Spa, Unit 
2 Nagpal House, 1 Gunthorpe Street, London, E1 (“the Premises”). The basis 
of the application was that two test purchases carried out in October 2021 had 
resulted in sexual services being offered by therapists. 
 
The Committee was made aware that the licence holder had submitted a 
request to cancel the licence. The Committee was also aware of 
correspondence between the Licensing and Safety Team and the licence 
holder’s solicitor in respect of this point. The Committee was advised that it 
was a matter of discretion to accept the cancellation or to proceed with the 
hearing. The Committee proceeded as Members thought it important to hear 
and determine the substantive application as the outcome may be relevant in 
respect of any future applications by the licence holder or for a new licence at 
the Premises.  
 
The Committee heard from Mr. Lewis, who outlined the test purchases and 
the reasons why revocation was sought. The Premises were being improperly 
conducted, the activity alleged was tantamount to prostitution, such offences 
were often linked to other criminal activity, and the perpetuation of these 
activities tarnished the Borough’s reputation. 
  
The licence holder did not attend but the Committee noted the request to 
cancel and that the allegations were not admitted and had no bearing on the 
decision to request cancellation of the licence. 
 
The Committee was satisfied as to the evidence of the test purchasers, which 
was in the agenda packs and which amounted to a breach of conditions 7B 
and 9 of the Council’s standard conditions which apply to all special treatment 
licences. In the absence of any representations from the licence holder (and 
noting in any event that she has no intention of continuing the business) the 
Committee was satisfied that it was appropriate to revoke the licence on the 
basis of section 8(c) and 8(e) of the London Local Authorities Act, namely that 
the persons concerned in the conduct or management of the premises could 
be reasonably regarded as not being fit and proper to hold such a licence, and 
that the premises have been or are being improperly conducted. 
 
Accordingly, the Committee unanimously;  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Revocation of the special treatment licence for Genesis Thai Beauty 
Spa, Unit 2 Nagpal House, 1 Gunthorpe Street, London, E1 7RG be 
GRANTED.     
 
 

2.2 London Local Authorities Act 1991 Hearing to consider the revocation of 
the Special Treatment Licence for Natural Treatment, 35 Artillery Lane, 
London E1 7LP  

Page 108



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 14/07/2022 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

 
The Licensing Committee considered an application by the Licensing and 
Safety Team seeking the revocation of the special treatment licence held by 
Yani Wang in respect of Natural Treatment, 35 Artillery Lane, London, E1 
(“the Premises”). The basis of the application was that two test purchases 
carried out in October 2021 had resulted in sexual services being offered by 
therapists. 
 
The Committee heard from Mr. Miah, who outlined the test purchases and the 
reasons why revocation was sought. Aside from the sexual activity, the report 
noted that there were also breaches of the conditions restricting massages 
from being given by persons of the opposite sex to the person receiving the 
treatment and requiring therapists to be approved. The Premises were being 
improperly conducted, the activity alleged was tantamount to prostitution, 
such offences were often linked to other criminal activity, and the perpetuation 
of these activities tarnished the Borough’s reputation.  
 
Ms. Wang attended and read out a prepared statement. She referred to 
having been “cheated” by the previous owner when she purchased the 
business in March 2020. Her statement referred to having heard of sexual 
services being offered in massage parlours but was nothing to do with her, but 
she now “…had to deal with the problem, the problem that was left over from 
the previous owner.” 
 
Ms. Wang spoke to her thirty years’ of experience in this industry. She 
suggested it should be the masseuses who should be regulated and suffer the 
risk of being unable to work if they offered sexual services, rather than 
penalising the employer. She accepted that there was a high risk of sexual 
services being offered but also accepted that her employees were doing what 
others do and they were just unlucky. She also suggested some form of 
collusion between officers and premises. In a second statement, Ms. Wang 
provided screenshots of messages between her and the massage therapist, 
in which the therapist denied offering the services. Ms. Wang said she did not 
believe that either the test purchaser or her massage therapist would lie. She 
suggested that she should have been made aware much sooner of the 
incidents. 
 
During questions from Members, Ms. Wang accepted that the operation of the 
Premises was her responsibility yet suggested that it was not possible to 
control what goes on once the door to the therapy room is closed. She told 
the Committee that she had not used the previous owner’s staff. Mr. Miah was 
asked why it had taken until February 2022 before these allegations were 
brought to Ms. Wang’s attention. He explained that the service had a number 
of cases to investigate, not just this one, and those took time. Evidence 
needed to be obtained and lines of enquiry pursued and it took a considerable 
period of time to be able to put cases together for either Committee or for 
referring to Legal Services.  
 
The Committee was satisfied as to the evidence of the test purchasers, which 
was in the agenda packs and which amounted to a breach of conditions 7B, 
8A and 9 of the Council’s standard conditions which apply to all special 

Page 109



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 14/07/2022 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

treatment licences. The Committee did not find Ms. Wang to be at all credible. 
Whilst her prepared statements appeared to suggest that these problems had 
materialised under the previous owner’s management and that they had only 
come to light after that, this did not fit with her own evidence. She had 
purchased the business in March 2020, she had not taken on the staff, and 
the test purchases had occurred in October 2021. She accepted her 
responsibility and yet sought to downplay it. She appeared to suggest that it 
was simply not possible to control the actions of her therapist.  
 
In addition, Ms. Wang knew or ought to have known of the condition requiring 
all therapists to be approved. The therapist in October 2021 was not 
approved.  
 
The Council’s standard conditions and the statutory grounds reasons for 
revocation are all focused on the safety and suitability of the Premises for the 
treatments and for those working and visiting. It is the responsibility of the 
licence holder to ensure compliance and if they do not know how to do so 
then it calls into question their fitness and propriety to hold a licence. The 
Committee was satisfied that the Ms. Wang was not exercising proper control 
of the Premises. She was failing to comply with at least three conditions and 
appeared to suggest that the offer of sexual activity was simply impossible to 
control. In light of everything that it had heard, the Committee was satisfied 
that it was appropriate to revoke the licence on the basis of section 8(c), 8(d) 
and 8(e) of the London Local Authorities Act, namely that the persons 
concerned in the conduct or management of the premises could be 
reasonably regarded as not being fit and proper to hold such a licence, that 
treatments were being given by people who were not suitably qualified, and 
that the premises have been or are being improperly conducted.  
 
Accordingly, the Committee unanimously;  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Revocation of the special treatment licence for Natural Treatment, 
35 Artillery Lane, London, E1 7LP be GRANTED.     
 
 

2.3 London Local Authorities Act 1991 Hearing to consider revoking the 
special treatment licence for Vanilla Thai Massage, 1 Whites Row, 
London E1 7NF  
 
The Licensing Committee considered an application by the Licensing and 
Safety Team seeking the revocation of the special treatment licence held by 
Cheung Lai Kwan in respect of Vanilla Thai Massage, 1 White’s Row, London, 
E1 (“the Premises”). The basis of the application was that two test purchases 
carried out in October 2021 had resulted in sexual services being offered by 
therapists. 
 
The Committee was also aware of correspondence between the Licensing 
and Safety Team and the licence holder’s solicitor which stated, among other 
things, that Ms. Kwan had sold the business, that she had been in Hong Kong 

Page 110



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 14/07/2022 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

since December 2019, that she was not intending to return to the UK in the 
foreseeable future, and that she has no further interest in the business. The 
Committee was advised that this did not meet the requirements of the London 
Local Authorities Act 1991 for a formal request to cancel.  
  
The Committee heard from Mr. Ali, who outlined the test purchases and the 
reasons why revocation was sought. The Premises were being improperly 
conducted, the activity alleged was tantamount to prostitution, such offences 
were often linked to other criminal activity, and the perpetuation of these 
activities tarnished the Borough’s reputation.  
 
The licence holder did not attend. The Committee noted the correspondence 
submitted on her behalf.  
 
The Committee was satisfied as to the evidence of the test purchasers, which 
was in the agenda packs and which amounted to a breach of conditions 7B 
and 9 of the Council’s standard conditions which apply to all special treatment 
licences. In the absence of any representations from the licence holder (and 
noting in any event that she appears to no longer be involved in the business) 
and given her long absence during which she cannot have been exercising 
proper control, the Committee was satisfied that it was appropriate to revoke 
the licence on the basis of section 8(c) and 8(e) of the London Local 
Authorities Act, namely that the persons concerned in the conduct or 
management of the premises could be reasonably regarded as not being fit 
and proper to hold such a licence, and that the premises have been or are 
being improperly conducted.  
 
Accordingly, the Committee unanimously;  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Revocation of the special treatment licence for Vanilla Thai 
Massage, 1 White’s Row, London, E1 7NF be GRANTED.     
 
 

The meeting ended at 8.15 p.m.  
 
 
 

Page 111



From: James Doherty
To: ammsorayaa@gmail.com
Subject: New License Application
Date: 24 July 2023 16:35:00
Attachments: image001.jpg

Newspaper pro forma.doc

London Local Authorities Act 1991

Good afternoon,

Please click on this link for full instruction on how to apply for a new Special Treatment Licence.

https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/lgnl/business/licences/special_treatments_licence.asp
x

Please see the attached document for the correct format required for a Newspaper advertisement.

N.B I must remind you that you must not offer treatments until a license has been given.

Kind Regards

James Doherty
Health and Safety Officer
Licensing and Safety Team
Environmental Health and Trading Standards
Place Directorate
4th Floor Tower Hamlets Town Hall
160 Whitechapel Road
London E1 1BJ

020 7364 1232
www.towerhamlets.gov.uk

Follow us on:
Facebook | Twitter | LinkedIn | Instagram

APPENDIX 2

Page 112

mailto:James.Doherty@towerhamlets.gov.uk
mailto:ammsorayaa@gmail.com
https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/lgnl/business/licences/special_treatments_licence.aspx
https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/lgnl/business/licences/special_treatments_licence.aspx
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.towerhamlets.gov.uk%2F&data=05%7C01%7CJames.Doherty%40towerhamlets.gov.uk%7C1821349f97d648d6384708daddc6008b%7C3c0aec87f983418fb3dcd35db83fb5d2%7C0%7C0%7C638066139733198608%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=dYD4LUoQ4bDYtHl3Nl9Yx1fI2eld%2B25iEVnxzl4NHuM%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Ftowerhamletscouncil&data=05%7C01%7CJames.Doherty%40towerhamlets.gov.uk%7C1821349f97d648d6384708daddc6008b%7C3c0aec87f983418fb3dcd35db83fb5d2%7C0%7C0%7C638066139733198608%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=G6HXAoUzmicdR2akJ9gak6t0jbD1j8FWJMD3ASCmCzk%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Ftowerhamletsnow&data=05%7C01%7CJames.Doherty%40towerhamlets.gov.uk%7C1821349f97d648d6384708daddc6008b%7C3c0aec87f983418fb3dcd35db83fb5d2%7C0%7C0%7C638066139733198608%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=4xmghxwQRapaxY9%2FEyVkhQ5MdyPjIlAigIDlfh9MelQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Flondon-borough-of-tower-hamlets&data=05%7C01%7CJames.Doherty%40towerhamlets.gov.uk%7C1821349f97d648d6384708daddc6008b%7C3c0aec87f983418fb3dcd35db83fb5d2%7C0%7C0%7C638066139733354810%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=JYP3NyctiZjX3M7JNzocBuUPmcsfhPButrbkaFrPptY%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Ftowerhamletsnow&data=05%7C01%7CJames.Doherty%40towerhamlets.gov.uk%7C1821349f97d648d6384708daddc6008b%7C3c0aec87f983418fb3dcd35db83fb5d2%7C0%7C0%7C638066139733354810%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=6USni%2BfxW6IDOM0K%2BF7r5XYE4mHQjVpk%2F6iYM5j4yjs%3D&reserved=0


From: Mehboob Ahmed
To: ammsorayaa@gmail.com
Subject: FW: Thai Garden 33 Artillery Lane E1 7LP
Date: 15 August 2023 12:28:00
Attachments: image001.jpg

From: Mehboob Ahmed 
Sent: 15 August 2023 11:16
To: ammsorayaa@gmail.com
Subject: Thai Garden 33 Artillery Lane E1 7LP

Good morning,

I am the officer processing your MST application form. Please look at my observations and address the points
accordingly:

PAT certificate has not been provided
Photos and names of all therapists mentioned in the application form ( A digital picture taken from
mobile phone will suffice, name the photo so it can be easily identified)
Qualifications of all therapists has not been supplied. The only one received is for Chanakan, which is
perfect (Level 3 in massage, and it is Ofqual accredited) we will need the same for the other 4 therapists
Evidence is required for the public notice in the form of a Newspaper advert, not yet provided.

Items received :
Payment of fee ✔
Liability insurance ✔
Price list ✔
Client/customer consent form  ✔

I would like to remind you that you cannot provide any special treatments such as massages, until you are
granted an MST License.

Kind regards,

Mehboob Ahmed
Health and Safety Officer
Environmental Health and Trading Standards
4th Floor Tower Hamlets Town Hall
160 Whitechapel Road
London E1 1BJ

020 7364 6619
www.towerhamlets.gov.uk

Follow us on:
Facebook | Twitter | LinkedIn | Instagram

Page 113

mailto:Mehboob.Ahmed@towerhamlets.gov.uk
mailto:ammsorayaa@gmail.com
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.towerhamlets.gov.uk%2F&data=05%7C01%7CMehboob.Ahmed%40towerhamlets.gov.uk%7C6c2dd438d425470d917d08da9039b877%7C3c0aec87f983418fb3dcd35db83fb5d2%7C0%7C0%7C637980874819700534%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=DyH8kdR7wkeSSMnFa7k3sNQDhS%2FDLAk3tWPZqZZgvew%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Ftowerhamletscouncil&data=05%7C01%7CMehboob.Ahmed%40towerhamlets.gov.uk%7C6c2dd438d425470d917d08da9039b877%7C3c0aec87f983418fb3dcd35db83fb5d2%7C0%7C0%7C637980874819700534%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ZATtrb6CvgkFZ6F6%2BBH0YwOR%2FhB355SvLKfb2DfV5PY%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Ftowerhamletsnow&data=05%7C01%7CMehboob.Ahmed%40towerhamlets.gov.uk%7C6c2dd438d425470d917d08da9039b877%7C3c0aec87f983418fb3dcd35db83fb5d2%7C0%7C0%7C637980874819700534%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=xhkeI%2FddWBtNPJk8HhvpWsoPdaUmIfC4Pv%2FZGh%2FELRU%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Flondon-borough-of-tower-hamlets&data=05%7C01%7CMehboob.Ahmed%40towerhamlets.gov.uk%7C6c2dd438d425470d917d08da9039b877%7C3c0aec87f983418fb3dcd35db83fb5d2%7C0%7C0%7C637980874819700534%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=6yCGRjyGrxEq5dsdMoR4BXgAczgB2tRTHth2NIqhDYI%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Ftowerhamletsnow&data=05%7C01%7CMehboob.Ahmed%40towerhamlets.gov.uk%7C6c2dd438d425470d917d08da9039b877%7C3c0aec87f983418fb3dcd35db83fb5d2%7C0%7C0%7C637980874819700534%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=vZis1TanyX0K5WtVLJkRGCYHX1vr7kb1HNt%2BhBMk%2FeI%3D&reserved=0


APPENDIX 3

Page 114



Page 115



APPENDIX 4

Page 116



M:\EHTeam\Word\Licences\DOCS\spetreat.021.doc 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

MASSAGE AND SPECIAL TREATMENT LICENCE CONDITIONS 

The COUNCIL of the LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS, under the 
provisions of LONDON LOCAL AUTHORITIES ACT 1991, hereby authorise the 
person(s) or company named in the schedule to carry on, up to and including ……… 
an establishment for the giving of massage or special treatment specified in the 
schedule at the address and in the trade name or style or title so specified subject to 
the following conditions:- 

1. The establishment shall be carried on only for the treatment or business and
in the trade name or style or title specified in this licence and at the address
mentioned herein.

2. All notices and advertisements issued by or on behalf of the establishment
shall bear the trade name or style or title aforesaid and the name of individual
assistants shall not be given in such notices and advertisements.

3. The licensee shall at once notify the Council in writing addressed to the
Environmental Health Commercial Team Manager, 4th Floor Tower Hamlets
Town Hall 160 Whitechapel Road London E1 1BJ, of any change in the name
or private address of the licensee or in the treatment afforded or the nature of
the business carried on at the establishment.

4. Except with the written consent of the Council, the licensee shall not employ
in the conduct of the establishment any person (a) whose licence has been
revoked or to whom a licence has been refused on the ground that such
person is unsuitable to hold a licence to carry on an establishment for
massage or special treatment, or (b) who is unsuitable to be so employed on
the ground that misconduct in connection with the employment of such
person in an establishment for massage or special treatment has been
proved to the satisfaction of the Council; and, except with such consent, the
licensee shall not allow or permit any such person to be directly or indirectly
interested in the business carried on at the establishment.

5. The licensee, if a company within the meaning of the companies Act, 1948, or
any Act amending the same shall forthwith notify the Council in writing of any
change in the constitution of the directorate of such company during the
currency of this licence

6. All treatments shall be given only by persons approved by the Council or,
provided that the written consent of the Council has been obtained, under the
personal supervision of a person approved by the Council.

7. The following treatments shall, unless the consent of the Council in writing
has otherwise been obtained, only be permitted by a qualified physiotherapist
in accordance with the directions of a registered medical practitioner with
specific reference to the client to whom the treatment is to be given:-
Massage for curative purposes, long and short wave diathermy;  ultra-sonic
treatments; treatment of moles, ultra-violet ray treatment and electro-sleep
therapy

8. No instrument, apparatus or equipment shall be used in the establishment
without the prior written consent of the Council.

APPENDIX 4

Page 117



M:\EHTeam\Word\Licences\DOCS\spetreat.021.doc 

9. The licensee shall at all times take reasonable precautions to ensure the 
safety of their clients when on the establishment. 

 
10. The Licensee shall ensure that with exception of those persons receiving 

treatment in accordance with the conditions of this licence all clients present 
in any part of the establishment shall be decently and properly attired and 
 separate changing accommodation for males and females shall be 
provided. 

 
11. (i) The walls and ceilings of any treatment room or waiting room shall be 

maintained in a sound structural and clean condition and the surfaces 
shall be such as to facilitate easy cleansing. 

 
 (ii) There shall be provided in every treatment room suitable floor covering 

which shall be such as to facilitate easy cleansing. 
 
 (iii) There shall be adequate light and ventilation to any treatment or waiting 

room either by natural of artificial means. 
 
 (iv) There shall be provided in every treatment room a suitable wash-hand  

basin or basins provided with an adequate supply of hot and cold water. 
 

(v) There shall be provided, in respect of a wash-hand basin, soap, a 
nailbrush and a supply of disposable towels or a clean towel available at 
all times. 

 
(vi) There shall be provided in every treatment and waiting room suitable 

and sufficient means for heating and a reasonable room temperature 
shall be maintained. 

 
 (vii) Where it is intended that more than one person shall be treated in a 

room, suitable screening shall be provided to maintain privacy. 
 

(viii) There shall be provided in respect of every establishment sanitary 
accommodation to the standard laid down in regulations made under the 
relevant registration such sanitary accommodation to be available to 
and readily accessible for clients. 

  
(ix) There shall be provided proper means for securing the cleanliness of all 

instruments, towels and materials and equipment used in connection 
with the establishment. 

 
Further condition to be included in appropriate cases:- 
 
12. Unless otherwise expressly permitted by the Council when treatment is given 

or is being received to any part of the body other than the neck and head or 
feet and legs below the knee or hands and arms and is not being so given by 
a fully qualified physiotherapist of other person entered on the register of the 
appropriate professional organisation whose qualifications have been 
approved by the Council, the treatment may be given only to persons of the 
same sex as the person giving the treatment and persons of the opposite sex 
shall not be present. 

 

Page 118



M:\EHTeam\Word\Licences\DOCS\spetreat.021.doc 

N.B. 
 
(I) The licence is not transferable either as regards the person to whom, to the 
 premises in respect of which, it is granted. 
 
(II) The licensees shall on application for renewal of their licence submit to the 

Council a certificate signed by a competent electrician certifying the safety of 
all electrical equipment and apparatus used within the terms of the licence. 

 
SCHEDULE 

 
Name, trade name, style                    Full name of                    Treatments 
Or title and address                              licensee                         authorised 
 
   

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	2.1 Hearing to consider refusal to grant a special treatment licence for Lily Thai Spa Massage, 1 Whites Row, London E1 7NF
	Lily Thai Spa 2023 Appendices.Red_pdfa

	2.2 Hearing to consider refusal to grant a special treatment licence for Thai Garden Massage Therapy, 35 Artillery Lane, London E1 7LP
	Thai Garden Massage Therapy 2023 Appendices.Red_pdfa




